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The historic resources area lies along a north-south road in a rural area comprised of gently rolling 

farmland and patches of wooded land. Farmhouses with their surrounding outbuildings are spaced along 
this road. Plenty of open space still faces this major road, although some newer houses have been 
built along it. There are, as yet, no incomparable commercial or industrial uses along this stretch of 
highway. The major historic resources of this area are the farmhouses. There are also some important 
outbuildings, such as the two old one room schools that have been converted to storage buildings. In 
and near Huntington Center are three old church buildings, two of which have been converted to other 
uses. On the corner of Route 58 and Route 162 are on old inn and an old brick school building that 
are vestiges of Huntington's past as a small community. The township cemetery also lies along this road „ 
Findley State Park and a state wildlife area constitute prominent open spaces that border on this road.

With four exceptions, the buildings that comprise this historic resources area are Greek Revival in 
style and predate the Civil War. They were built when Huntington was a much larger community and 
are reminders of the town's most prosperous past. There are two basic types of Greek Revival houses 
to be found in this area. One type is a story and a half Greek Revival house that features a bold, 
massive entablature and large corner pilasters. The other type is a full two story house with more deli­ 
cate detailing and lighter cornices. This type also has a semi elliptical fan light in the attic. The 
larger buildings, such as the three churches and the old inn all exhibit the typical characteristics of 
the Greek Revival style: rectangular plan; simple, massive entablatures and corner pilasters; entrance- 
ways enframed by smaller entablatures arid pilasters; and clapboard siding. The four buildings that are 
not Greek Revival are the two old schools, which have vertical board and batten siding and wood trim 
characteristic of the Italianate style, and the public school, which is built of brick and dates from the 
early Twentieth Century, and the Mosher House. The Mosher House is an interesting turn of the cen­ 
tury house that shows the influence of the prairie style in its horizontal siding and broad overhanging 
eaves.

Since the buildings in the resource area are separated from one another, except in Huntington Center, 
there is no strong physical link from one property to another. The Greek Revival houses along this 
road constitute about three quarters of all the houses in the area, so they are a dominant feature along 
this road. At one time, these Greek Revival buildings were the only structures to line this road and 
they were in greater numbers than at present. And while they continue to be the dominant physical 
feature along this road, the increasing encroachment of this area by residential development threatens 
to disrupt the rural setting these buildings now enjoy. There are only two commercial uses of land in 
the area and these are quite inobtrusive. There are several public or semi public buildings in the re­ 
source area. These are clustered near the intersection of Route 58 and Route 162. Large old shade 
trees are present on many of the properties and add to the historic character of the area.

Archeological resources have not been inventoried as part of this survey. Lorain County is known to 
possess a number of significant sites and it is entirely possible that significant sites lie within the 
historic resources area.
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There are sites that have the potential to yield information on Huntington's 
early history. For instance, the site of the old Huntington hotel, which burned 
in the 1930's, could yield some interesting artifacts. Sites of some of the 
first structures to be built in the township lie along this road.

A number of outbuildings are clustered around the nominated farmhouses. These are 
generally older structures constructed with massive wood framing. Some of them 
have had other uses. Behind the O.T. Baker House is a garage that was once an old 
one room school, originally located at Huntington Center. Behind the Gregg House 
is another similar old one room school. It was once located at the corner of 
Baker and Bursley Roads. North of the William Nooney House is a small barm which 
was once used as a blacksmith shop. Other outbuildings had associations with the 
cheese industry, which flourished in this area during the late nineteenth century, 
These barns and other outbuildings are to be included in the National Register 
along with their farmhouses.

State Route 58, which runs between Wellington and Huntington, has long been known 
as a road with many interesting older houses along it. While Huntington Township 
has other Greek Revival houses scattered throughout, the most impressive and the 
greatest number lie along this road. Driving along this road is visual experience 
unequaled by any other roads in the vicinity. Route 58, as South Main Street in 
Wellington, is in the center of a designated historic district and has many out­ 
standing older houses lining both sides of it. The historic resources area, 
which begins at the southern edge of the Wellington Historic District, is a logical 
extension of this district south through Huntington. Nomination of the historic

r'resources area with emphasis on this road, rather than on a township or city,
recognizes the visual importance of this grouping of historic buildings and hope-

; fully will do more to advance the preservation of the scenic beauty of this road.

Not all of the older houses along this road are included in the nomination. Those 
that were not specifically included were smaller, less impressive structures that 
have had major alterations, such as new exterior siding or large incongruous 
additions, or those that have not been well maintained and are deteriorated, or 
those that were not particularly distinguished architecturally or historically. 
In the future, if some of these buildings are restored or rehabilitated, they may 
be added to the list of nominated properties. While most of the nominated build­ 
ings were selected on the basis of their architecture, many of them also have 
historical significance of a local nature.
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Same of the finest and best preserved examples of rural Greek Revival architecture in this area may be 
found along the road from Wellington to Huntington. These Greek Revival farmhouses, along with their 
attendant outbuildings, are finely crafted and well-proportioned examples of the first major style of 
architecture to appear in this part of Ohio. In addition, the historic resource area contains the remnants 
of what was 6nce a thriving settlement. , The. respurc.e area is located aloha^a road fhaf was oF motor im-
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portahce fit the transportation of goods and services in the mid nineteenth century.

WOfftTngton Township was first settled in 1818 by a group of people coming from Connecticut. In 1822, 
the township was organized and a wave of settlement began. The first road to be opened was a north - 
south road through the center of the township. It was used to establish a trading link between this rural 
area and Lake Erie, which was then a major route for goods flowing to and from the East Coast. During 
the 1840's an established community began to take form at the center of Huntington Township, serving 
as••<* ptaeeof commerce for the surrounding farmlands. Four churches were erected during this decade,

and inns were established. The settlement of Huntington continued to be largely oriented 
thl* north-south route, which is where most of its trade originated. For a brief time around 1850 

in had a larger commercial center than any of the adjoining townships. However, when the 
\ f Columbus and Cincinnati Railroad came through Wellington in 1849, Huntington's fate was

migration of commerce and people from Huntington to Wellington occurred; a number of houses 
fiscally moved by teams of horses from Huntington to Wellington. Huntington's population began

flecline over the succeeding decades, falling to less than half its peak population of 1,200. 
Only recently, with advancing suburban sprawl, has Huntington's population decline been reversed, and 
its population is still far below that of 1850.

Huntington's most famous native son was Myron T. Herrick, wealth Cleveland businessman, governor 
of Ohio and U.S. ambassador to France. Herrick was born and raised in Huntington, and although his 
residence is not a part of the resource area, some building's that exist today were important landmarks 
in the town of Huntington where Herrick grew up. Other prominent people from Huntington include State 
Senator J. T. Haskell and Tass Phelon, who was Huntington's only county commissioner. Both of these 
men lived in the William Nooney House.
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Because Huntington has seen virtually no new development since the 1850's, many 
of its buildings are largely undisturbed. While some, such as the Township Hall and Old 
Inn, have fallen into disrepair, others are in a good state of preservation. The Darlon 
Alien House and the John A. Chapman House are two examples of very well preserved 
Greek Revival farmhouses. Many outbuildings and barns are still intact, as well.

Because these buildings are, for the most part, widely spaced, they do not form a 
continuous district. Their location along the road from Wellington to Huntington does 
create a visual relationship among these buildings, as they can be viewed as a fairly 
continuous series of early farmhouses separated by open space. Between Burs ley Road and 
Route 162, the nominated buildings are located closer together and become more of a con­ 
tinuous district, but because of the difficulties of setting precise boundaries when the lots 
are still quite sizeable, it was decided to specify the significant buildings near Huntington 
Center.

The results of this survey of historic resources along Route 58 have been made available 
to local planning agencies. Development could be considered a threat to the northern 
portion of the resource area, particularly around the Mosher House, but there are at present no 
official plans that would endanger the historic resource area. The major threat to this area 
in the foreseeable future seems to be the continufaagctreod toward new house construction 

• in rural areas.

!t

This survey and nomination was done by the Lotain County Regional Planning 
Commission under contract with the Ohio Historic Preservation Office. The 
contract was designed to comprehensively inventory the county through the Ohio 
Historic Inventory, and then to nominate selected properties to the National 
Register. The original form preparer served as the primary staffing for the 
contract.
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The Wellington-Huntington Road was a vital 19th century transportation route along 
which an impressive array of residences and public buildings were constructed. The 
arrangement of these highly significant buildings along the road compose a distinct 
and visually identifiable "resource area," with the road serving as the connecting 
thread, both historically and presently. Because of the importance of this road as 
a line of communication between Wellington and settlements to the south, the 
immediately adjacent area and side roads to the east and west do not exhibit this 
distinctive architecture. All eligible properties along the road have been nominated 
and no effort has been made to select only "the most major and most significant." 
In fact, of the approximately 60 buildings lining the road, over a third are being 
nominated at this time. The remainder are more recent 20th century buildings. It 
can simply be said that this stretch of road is a highly unique area within the 
county which should be considered apart from any other, including the Wellington 
Historic District.
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SfTATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER CERTIFICATION
THE EVALUATED SIGNIFICANCE OF THIS PROPERTY WITHIN THE STATE IS: 

NATIONAL __ STATE_ __

As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National Historic Pfeservatidn Act of 1966 (Publfc Law 89-665). I 
hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Register and certify that it has been evaluated according to the 
criteria and procedures set forth by the National Park Service.
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